HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
January 25, 2010
1:32 p. m

1: 32: 01 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Hawker called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:32 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Hawker, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Vice-Chair
Representative Allan Austernman
Representati ve M ke Doogan
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Represent ati ve Neal Foster
Representative Les Gara
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative M ke Kelly
Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

VEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Larry Hartig, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Environnental
Conservati on; M ke Maher , Director, Di vi si on of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnent of Revenue; Denby LI oyd,
Comm ssi oner, Departnment of Fish and Gane

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

None

SUVMVARY

HB 300 APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS
HB 300 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration. The follow ng departnents

present ed overvi ews:

The Departnent of Environnmental Conservation
The Departnent of Fish and Gane

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



HB 302 APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

HB 302 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for
further consideration.

1: 32: 12 PM

#hb300
#hb302
HOUSE BI LL NO._ 300

"An Act making appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnent, for certain
programs, and to capitalize funds; making suppl enenta
appropriations; mnmaking appropriations under art. [|X
sec. 17(c), Constitution of the State of Alaska; and
providing for an effective date."

HOUSE BI LL NO._ 302

"An Act making appropriations for the operating and
capi tal expenses of t he state's i nt egrated
conprehensi ve nmental health program and providing for
an effective date."

Co- Chair Hawker presented the overviews for today.

1: 33: 05 PM

DEPARTMENT OF ENVI RONMENTAL CONSERVATI ON

LARRY HARTIG COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF ENVI RONVENTAL
CONSERVATI ON, introduced his staff in Admnistrative
services. He stated the departnent mssion to protect human
health and the environnent. He expl ained that the Departnent
of Environnental Conservation (DEC) is primary a regul atory
agency. He added that one of the nost inportant functions in
the water division is the village safe water and matching

grant prograns. This division helps small and |[|arge
communities with water and sanitation systens. Comr ssioner
Hartig listed t he departnent's five di vi si ons:
Adm ni strative Services (budget, financial, information,
| easi ng, pr ocur enent , and environnental crines), Air
Quality (set federal clean air act standards and issue
conpliance permts), Envi r onnment al Health (laboratory

services, state veterinarian, food safety and sanitation,
drinking water, solid waste and pesticide nmanagenent),
Water Quality and Spill Prevention and Response.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked how invasive species are handled
between the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) and the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



Departnment of Environnental Conservation (DEC). He wondered
if there was duplication or cooperation between the
depart nments.

Conmi ssioner Hartig replied that the primary role of DEC was
issuing permts in dealing with invasive species through
pesti ci des.

1:40: 47 PM

Conmi ssioner Hartig continued with the Division of Spill and
Response which deals wth preventing and responding to
spills and cleaning up spills. There is also an industria
prevention and pipeline program

Representative Gara questioned if the ongoing five cents per
barrel oil surcharge adequately covers spill response and
prevention work. Conmm ssioner Hartig acknow edged he would
be discussing that later in his presentation.

Conmi ssioner Hartig remarked that the Division of Water sets
water quality standards, facilities prograns, the village
and safe water rmnunicipal matching grants program and issues
the cruise ship programpermts for wastewater discharge.

1:42: 45 PM

Comm ssioner Hartig reported that the total operating budget
proposed for FY2011 is $75,546,000 with the general fund
conponent at $19.7 mllion, federal noney at $22.1 million
and $14 mllion in "Qher". It also includes comercial
vessel funds, Ccean Ranger funds, clean air funds and ot her
smal | er funds.

Co-Chair Hawker believed that Conm ssioner Hartig was
presenting his information using the old categorization
nmet hods, therefore an i mmedi ate connecti on cannot be nade on
the totals shown on the legislature's short form books. He
stressed that the fund sources are the sanme but cannot be
conpar ed.

Conmi ssioner Hartig announced that there is a large
conponent of federal funds in the DEC budget, but the funds
are in decline. He highlighted an increase in funding for
the drinking water program The proposed budget increase in
general funds of $300,000 and the addition of five permanent
full time positions. He explained the reason for the request
was that in 2006 the Environnmental Protection Agency (EPA)
put forward three new drinking water rules or prograns that
the departnent needs to handle. These new prograns would
increase the workload and oversight in the departnent. He
al so foresaw nore future regul ati ons.

1:46: 16 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



Representati ve Austerman requested nore detailed information
about the new EPA rules. He wondered how long the federa
governnment will be matching 50/50 funds with the state
government. Conm ssioner Hartig reported that the three
added rul es were nunber 17 through 19 on the list issued by
the EPA. The new rules cover disinfectants, disinfection
byproducts, long term enhanced service work treatnent, and
ground water. Comm ssioner Hartig stated he would provide
the details on these rules to the conmttee. He noted that
as the federal governnment adds nore conplex rules,
especially for rural communities, his departnment is required
to oversee the training and outreach in these communiti es.
He noted that the new positions would be added to the base
budget as permanent positions.

Representative Austerman inquired how |long the 50 percent
mat chi ng federal noney woul d be avail abl e.

Comm ssioner Hartig anticipated that the 50 percent federal
noney would continue for several years for the drinking
water program The program is nationwi de, so if EPA backed
off funding all the other states would be arguing for noney.
Comm ssioner Hartig reported that the three new rules were
i npl enented in 2006 and the state had until 2010 to take
primacy on them |[If not inplemented, the state could |ose
primacy of this program He added that an anticipated four
new rules will be rolled out by the EPA in the next few
years; therefore, in the long term plan in FY2013 there is
anot her $500,000 in additional general fund match request
with $500, 000 in federal.

Representati ve Austerman asked out of 19 rules how | ong have
t hey been in prinmacy.

Conmi ssioner Hartig replied that prinmacy is taken in each of
these rules. If the departnent elects not to take prinmacy
then the EPA could take the drinking water program over.
Representative Austerman reiterated that three new rules
were being inplenented that was costing the state $300, 000
in general funds and $300,000 in federal noney with five new
positions created. He asked for further information on how
many new enpl oyees have been added with each new EPA rule.
Comm ssioner Hartig answered that new positions have been
added as certain rules are inplenented. He remarked that his
departnment woul d send the finance commttee a summary of new
posi tions.

1: 52: 04 PM

Representative Gara asked for a general fund cost for taking
over primacy in the drinking water area versus if primacy is
not taken. Conmmissioner Hartig said that would be done.
Representative Gara questioned if the departnent also had

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 01/25/10 1:32 P. M



primacy in wastewater and asked for a conparison of primacy
versus not taking primacy. Comm ssioner Hartig replied that
one of concerns is that EPA is not set up to take prograns
back; therefore the question wuld be theoretical.
Representative Gara responded that the federal |aw says this
program nust be inplenented even if the state does not take
primacy. Conmm ssioner Hartig replied that it would take a
| ot of preparation for the federal governnent to take over
t he program

1: 53: 57 PM

Representative Kelly asked that with the decline in federal
funds conbined with the added new federal requirenents and
the federal government's inability to take primacy; he
wondered if this was good or bad news for Al aska.
Comm ssioner Hartig responded that it would be bad for
Al aska and hard for soneone outside of Alaska to run this
program

Representative Kelly restated that Al aska m ght choose not
to have the EPA prograns or be willing to pay for them |If
the federal government could not take primacy back or be
able to force Alaska to take primacy, then he believed this
m ght be good news for Alaska to be able to choose what is
necessary. He added that with federal funds declining, the
state will have to keep contributing nore to keep these
progranms wor ki ng.

1:57:42 PM

Co- Chai r Hawker interjected that one  of the next
rul e/ prograns anticipated is called the Radon rule which
could cost the state a |lot of nobney. He added that another
maj or revision would involve |ead and copper prograns. He
noted that federal rules are causing financial problens for
Al aska. He announced that just wthin all the agencies'
budgets, there is a 5.7 percent aggregate growth that needs
to be cut to 3 percent, which translates to cutting $130
mllion out of the governor's requested general funds
budget .

1: 59: 40 PM

Comm ssioner Hartig pointed out that the federal drinking
rules are not a take it or leave it option. These prograns
are federal requirenents and if the state governnent did not
take it over then soneone else would. He questioned if
Al aska would rather have the federal or state governnent
enforcing these prograns. He added that it was also
inportant to point out that the state would |ose federa
funds attached to these prograns. Conmm ssioner Hartig
continued with highlights from the FY2011 operating budget,
noting there is a $260,000 general fund increment for

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



equi pnment mai nt enance agreenents. He informed that equi pnent
warranties were expiring at the Environnental Health Lab. He
stated that $153,000 was for contractual services for
pesticide prograns. This rmoney would provide expert
consultation for the programand would be totally funded out
of the yearly registration fees charged to those who
regi ster pesticides to sell in Al aska.

Commi ssi oner Hartig continued that $150, 000 in general funds
would be wused for a full tinme position for consistency
determnation in the Air Quality division and help with the
Quter Continental Shelf (OCS) and Al aska Gasline |nducenent
Act (AG A work.

Co- Chair Hawker asked if there was work within the division
that was not necessary or required. Conmm ssioner Hartig
responded that the Air Quality division has a lot of new
work and needs the greatest lead tinme on any oil and gas
projects before there is any devel opnent.

2: 04: 08 PM

Representative Kelly asked if CO2 was a regul ated substance.
Comm ssioner Hartig responded that it was regulated not at
this tine, but there is a requirement to nonitor reporting
of gr eenhouse em ssi ons over 25 t ons per year.
Representative Kelly expressed concern that there was heavy
pressure to regulate emssions. He noted that if there is a
backl ash against cap and trade that could cost Al askans
electricity and fuel, he believed the carbon situation my
not have played out conpletely. He enphasized that as sone
of the expenditures continue to accelerate; there mght be a
different result than anticipated. He told the comm ssioner
to be suspicious of anything adding cost to the DEC headi ng
in that direction.

2: 05: 51 PM

Representative Austerman asked if there were any existing
environmental progranms not required by law Conm ssioner
Hartig responded no. He infornmed the commttee that Suprene
Court case, Massachusetts vs. EPA, held that if the EPA
finds that CO2 em ssions were endangering the health of the
public, then it nust be regulated as a pollutant under the
Clean Air Act. The EPA made this endangernent finding and
will proceed to regulate CO2 and other greenhouse gas
em ssions under the Clean Air Act. He reported that Senator
Li sa Murkowski introduced a resolution that would preclude
EPA fromgoing forward with this plan, pending congressional
action. He warned that there is a risk for Alaska if the
state does not evaluate the inpact of a cap and trade
program or understand how it mght inpact a gas line or
ot her econom c devel opnent progranms critical to Alaska's

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



econony. He cautioned that the discussions would go forward
wi t hout Al aska's input.

Representative Austerman asked what would be the duties of
this new full tine position. Comm ssioner Hartig responded
that this position would |ook at OCS, AG A and the baseline
i nformati on needed and al so | ook at the inpact of a federal
program and how to represent Al aska in these discussions.

2:09: 16 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the various departnents would be
willing to help the legislature send a strong nessage to the
federal government expressing concern regarding cap and
trade issues.

Conmi ssioner Hartig replied that the governor has taken a
position on cap and trade and its possible inpact on a gas
line project and has sent letters to Al aska's delegation in
Washi ngton. Co-Chair Stoltze asked if it would be harnful to
the state if +the legislature expresses their concern
regarding federal policies. Conm ssioner Hartig believed it
woul d be best to leave it with the governor's office.

2:11: 03 PM

Representative Salnon referred to the pollution problens in
Fairbanks and asked how the state deals wth it.
Conmi ssioner Hartig remarked that the EPA set a standard for
particulate matter, the particles that go into the air when
burning hydrocarbons, at 2.5 mcron particles. These
particles get inbedded deep in the lungs causing health
concerns. If communities do not neet the required |evels
then the consequences, besides the harm to human health

could be a cut in federal highway funds. When a comunity,
such as Fairbanks, does not neet this federal |aw, then DEC
works with the comunity to develop a plan to cone into
conpliance. Once the plan is in place and the conmmunity
starts operating under the plan, the EPA just nonitors the
situation. If the conmmunity does not adopt a plan then EPA
will inplement their own plan. He rem nded the comunity
that failure to conmply may ultimately end with a cut in
hi ghway f unds.

2:13: 33 PM

Representati ve Sal non asked if anythi ng was bei ng done about
the snoke problem in Fairbanks and the Yukon flats.
Comm ssioner Hartig answered that the departnent works
closely with DNR and other federal agencies to nonitor the
nmet r ol ogi cal conditions and warn people wth health
advi sori es. Representative Salnmon questioned what the
difference was between summer and w nter conditions.
Comm ssioner Hartig stated that inversions in the wnter

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



traps the snmoke, but it does not rise to the sane |evels as
the large sumer fires around Fairbanks in recent years.

2:15: 08 PM

Co-Chair Hawker remarked that he wanted to get the | onger
range goal for the departnent.

Representative Kelly quoted that "this investnent would
allow the state to further its objectives to address climte
change and efficiently nove forward the construction of a
nat ur al gas pipeline.™ ( Depart nent of Envi r onnment al
Conservation, Operating Budget Presentation to House Fi nance
Conmi ttee-Jan. 25, 2120, page 2, under Air Quality, copy on
file). He asked what the objectives of the state were.

Conmi ssioner Hartig remarked that the objectives would be to
make sure that if there is a federal program to control
gr eenhouse em ssions, it would not hinder going forward with
coal and the natural gas pipeline. He added that to
commercialize natural gas on the North Slope there will be a
huge energy need and that cost along with federal rules
could make the gas line unprofitable; therefore it was very
important for DEC to know how the carbon could be managed

Representative Kelly suggested that the DEC help the state
find ways to fight the federal gover nnment rul es.
Conmi ssioner Hartig said they were trying to nove in a
rational way toward what is best for Alaska and its
conmuni ties.

2:18: 48 PM

Conmi ssioner Hartig noved on to the capital budget review
He noted the capital budget proposal is $75 mllion for
FY2010. The safe water program is $48,500,000, 75 percent
federal with a 25 percent state match. He noted there
continues to be a 40 percent decline in federal funding over
the last six years. The FY2011 budget is approximately $18
mllion less just because of the drop in federal funding

Eventually the federal funds will end so the question arises
on what to do for funding the village safe water situation

Co-Chair Hawker voiced his concern regarding deferred
mai nt enance issues in the villages and wondered about the
accunul at ed exposure for the state regardi ng mai nt enance.

Conmi ssioner Hartig remarked that not maintaining facilities
may require themto be replaced earlier resulting in a huge
expense to the state. He added that |ack of naintenance
mght also affect the reliability of the facilities. He
understood that the high cost of energy in communities may
be putting pressure not to fund naintenance issues. He
remarked that the legislature mght consider working with
the federal governnent to provide sone incentives for
communities to devel op sound nmai ntenance pl ans.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



Co- Chair Hawker asked if the DEC can use the village safe-
wat er earmark for mai ntenance or only for new construction.

Comm ssioner Hartig answered that the earmark is used for
new construction and to replace facilities and upgrades, but
not for maintenance. He pointed out that renote maintenance
workers are on call to travel to a conmunity to train howto
fix problens, but the renpte workers do not do the work
thenselves. He indicated that the DEC was exploring
different ideas on how deal w th mai ntenance issues.

2:23: 17 PM

Co- Chai r Hawker asked about the prevention account bal ance.

Comm ssioner Hartig referred to the handout on the "nickel a
barrel” tax on crude oil fromthe North Sl ope and Cook Inlet
(Departnent of Environnental Conservation Response Fund,
Prevention Account-Balance Projection, copy on file). He
mentioned this tax is split in the Response Fund into two
accounts; the Prevention account receives four cents and the
Response Account receives one cent. The Prevention account
handl es the spill prevention response division. The one cent
goes into the Response Account for energency spills. He
el aborated that the $50 nmillion response fund is available
for emergencies. If this account drops below $50 mllion,
then the one cent tax is inplenented until the $50 million
is restored. He added that with declining oil production,
the surcharge will go down over tine. The Prevention Account
Bal ance graph shows the fund decline. Comm ssioner LIoyd
noted that in FY2014, the account will go into the red. The
only thing that has kept the account fromgoing into the red
earlier is the surplus established years ago. In order to
avoid cutting back on services, the options after FY2014
woul d be to increase production, increase the surcharge, or
suppl enent the fund with general funds.

Co-Chair Hawker asked what the departnent planned to do
about the bankrupt fund in FY2014. Conm ssioner Hartig
repeated that there could be a proposal next year to
increase the surcharge or supplenent it with general fund
noney. He added that this situation has been brought to the
attention of the legislature each year. Co-Chair Hawker
asked if it was possible to reduce costs. Comn ssioner
Harti g agreed that cost savings was an option.

2:28:16 PM

Representative Austernman requested a ten year history of
what the fund has generated and any growth in expenditures.
Conmi ssioner Hartig agreed to provide the information to the
comm ttee and subcomm ttee.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



Representative Doogan wondered why the admnistration
intended to spend $7.5 mllion nore than the fund' s revenue.
Comm ssioner Hartig repeated that there was a surplus in the
fund at present. Representative Doogan asked why it was the
policy of the departnent to spend down the surplus noney at
this rate.

Comm ssioner Hartig responded that the amount in the fund
was not designed to be the amount the Division of Spill,
Prevention, and Response (SAR) needed for their operations.
He added that because of the ampunt that existed when the
fund split between the prevention and response accounts, a
surplus was created. He added that there was never an agreed
budget for SPAR. There was the belief that the surcharge on
crude oil production would support SPAR Unfortunately this

has gone down. The division is at a point of filling the gap
with the surplus, but that is also declining. He enphasized
that a new way of funding will have to fill the gap.

M KE MAHER, DI RECTOR, DI VISION OF ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, explained that the two expenditures
for capital or contami nated sites cleanup are based on risk
For three years the division has not asked for any capita
funds for many contam nated sites throughout the state, but
sonme sites have reached a critical point where the use of
this fund or the general fund is necessary. In the past the
| egi sl ature has hel ped by adding sone general funds to the
account .

2:33: 02 PM

Represent ati ve Doogan asked for a plan to solve the problem
Comm ssioner Hartig responded that the departnent would be
putting proposals together for a long term plan. The fund
problem is all triggered by the decline in production;
therefore additional revenue wll be needed. Co-Chair
Hawker voiced past concern about the use of the fund to
clean up sites that may not have been appropriate, such as
bailing out other state agencies. He wondered if this was
still happening. Conm ssioner Hartig noted this vyear's
proposed budget of $1 million general fund noney to clean up
of some state's contam nated sites.

2:36: 05 PM

Representative Gara asked if there wll be further
di scussion on the five cents a barrel issue in the House
Fi nance comi ttee or subcomi tt ee. Co-Chair Hawker

interjected that the discussion would certainly be in the
subcommi ttee. Conmmi ssioner Hartig indicated his wllingness
to meet with any individual |egislator to discuss the matter
further. Representative Gara stated that the DEC was put on
a goal to econom ze and wondered if this had happened. He
al so asked where the $50 million response fund was today.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



Comm ssioner Hartig responded that the one cent surcharge
was presently in effect to bring the fund back up to $50
mllion. M. WMher responded that the response fund was
presently at $45 nmillion. Representative Gara asked how | ong
it would take to reach $50 million. M. Maher answered that
one cent is roughly $2.3 mllion a year; therefore it would
take about 2 1/2 to 3 years. Co-Chair Hawker added that
i ncreasing production m ght solve the problem

2: 38: 53 PM

Representative Austerman asked for information on how the
four cents is being used. Conm ssioner Hartig noted that
there is cost recovery on third parties, but not for state
agenci es.

Representative Kelly responded that the commr ssioner needs
to put pressure on policymakers to make this sustainable.

2:40: 51 PM

Co- Chair Hawker remarked that a review of |egislative intent
was needed.

Representative Sal non questioned if the one cent was capped
at $50 million. Conmi ssioner Hartig replied that was
correct. Representative Salnon inquired what turns the one
cent on and off. Comm ssioner Hartig answered that if nobney
is drawn fromthe response fund then the one cent surcharge
turns on until $50 million is reached. Representative Sal non
asked where the one cent nobney goes after $50 mllion is
reached. Comm ssioner Hartig said that the surcharge is
turned off once the $50 nmillion is reached. He explained
t hat when the DEC draws fromthe fund, the governor, finance
chairs and the Departnent of Revenue are notified. The

Departnment of Revenue sends a bill for the oil surcharge
until the $50 million is reached, then the billing stops.
2:43: 23 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered if the conm ssioner had gone back
to the original intent of the bill. Conm ssioner Hartig
concluded that in the long term plan, the key issues were
declining federal and response funds.

2:46: 32 PM

DEPARTMENT OF FI SH AND GAME

DENBY LLOYD, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME
(DFG, provided a broad overview of the departnent. He
referred to Article 8 in the Alaska Constitution stating
t hat the legislature wll provide for utilization,
devel opmrent and conservation of all natural resources

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



belonging to the state for the maximum benefit of its
people. He read the departnent mssions statenment, "To
protect, maintain, and inprove the fish, ganme, and aquatic
pl ant resources of the state, and manage their use and
devel opment in the best interest of the econony and well -
being of the people of the state, consistent with the
sustained yield principle.”" He stressed that sustained yield
means obt ai ni ng ongoi ng production and use of the resources.
The  depart nment deals wth fisheries, hunti ng, and
conservation of fish and wldlife primarily within state
boundaries. The DFG nust also work wth federal agency
authorities, such as the National Marine Fisheries Service,
the U S. Forest Service, Bureau of Land Mnagenent, and
others. The departnent nust also conply with the Endangered
Species Act and Marine Mmal protection Act which he
believed to be an encroachment on sone of the state's
authority. He also remarked on sone international agencies
that affect the departnent’'s work. Conm ssioner Lloyd
stressed that the people of Al aska are passionate about
hunting, trapping, and fishing resources.

Comm ssioner Lloyd listed the departnent's core services:
Harvest Managenent, Stock Assessnent, Custoner Service,
Publ i c | nvol venent State Sovereignty, and Habi t at
Protection. (Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane, FY11
Governor's Qperating Budget Request Overview, copy on file).
In order to acconplish the core services, the departnent
internally takes workforce devel opnent seriously. He
mentioned the difficulty in retention and recruitnment of
enpl oyees along with hunters and angl ers who provide nmuch of
the departnent's revenues.

2:54: 23 PM

Comm ssioner Lloyd referred to the three budget tables (page
3). The Current Capacity table is the FY2010 authorized
budget which is broken out by the six core service prograns.
The next table deals wth transactions of increnents
proposed for FY2011l operating budget. The last table is the
FY2011 Governor's Budget. Conmm ssioner Lloyd noted that the
two nmain prograns are harvest rmanagenent and stock
assessnment. He added that harvest managenent is the nost
fundanmental service provided to determ ne the popul ati on and
bi ol ogi cal productive paraneters.

2:55:46 PM

Vi ce-Chair Thomas inquired how the stock assessnent nonies
have gone up or down in the past ten years. M. Lloyd
responded that he would send the information to the
conmittee.

Representati ve Doogan asked about the nunbers under the
"ot her funds" category.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



M. Lloyd listed state general funds, federal funds,
licensing revenues, fines and forfeitures, interagency
receipts, and test fisheries. Co-Chair Hawker noted that the
information was | ocated under nuneral "V' in the short form
book.

2:58: 00 PM

Conmi ssi oner Lloyd referred to the Key Performance
I ndi cators of each core program (page 4-5).

Co- Chair Hawker noted the received increnment request noney
was for Western Region Fisheries Managenent and wondered if
there m ght be additional federal funds now that the federa
government has declared the western region fisheries a
di saster. M. Lloyd hoped there would be additional federa
funds avail able. There have been additional projects added
over the last several vyears that wll provide better
managenent of those runs. He added there is an ongoing
federal grant process through the Pacific Coastal Sal non
Recovery Fund program but it wll be shared with other
western states.

3: 00: 35 PM

Representative Austerman asked how nmuch noney is left over
fromthe sustainable salnmon funds. M. Lloyd said it depends
on which year of the grant fund. Vice-Chair Thomas asked
where the funds for Crystal Lake Hatchery would cone from
Conmi ssioner Lloyd reported he did not know, but would | ook
into the matter. He added there are ongoing discussions
anong many constituent groups for the Southeast Mtigation
Fund. This is noney appropriated by the federal governnent
to the state of Alaska in recognition of sonme detrinments in
Sout heast due to the Pacific Sal non agreenent.

3:03: 25 PM

Representati ve Sal non wondered what the noney in the budget
woul d do for the Yukon River. Conm ssioner Lloyd remarked
that in the operating budget, there was a request for
$130,000 to help <continue the Chinook salnobn stock
identification program to determne their novenments.

Conmi ssioner Lloyd noted a nunber of itenms in the capita

budget that could be used for fishery research; such as
$750, 000 for an ongoing effort in the Wstern Al aska Sal non
| dentification program He shared that when conpleted the
study will be the largest and nost intensive salnon stock
genetic identification study anywhere. In additional there
is a request for $200,000 to enhance aerial survey of Chum
salnon and $250,000 to refine the pilot station sonar
program

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



3:07: 02 PM

Representative Joul e asked the departnent's plans regarding
subsi st ence issues.

Comm ssioner Lloyd responded that the departnent would
continue to work wth the federal governnent substance
review process. He noted that Al aska would |like the federa
government to recognize the state's sovereignty on fish and
wildlife managenent. The federal subsistence nmanagenent
program occurred when Alaska failed to conmply with the
federal rural position under the Al aska National |Interest
Lands Conservation Act (ANILCA). The departnent is not

contesting the federal preference on federal Ilands for
federally eligible subsistence users. Comm ssioner Lloyd
added that the departnent is responsible for t he

conservation of the fish and wildlife stocks upon which the
federally eligible users are dependent.

Representative Joule asked how the dual nanagenent process
is working. Commi ssioner Lloyd alleged it would be
preferable not to have dual nmanagenent, but it has been
getting operationally better over the years.

3:12: 07 PM

Representative Gara asked if there was any conpensation for
t hose who were unable to fish King [Chinook] salnmon on the
Yukon River after it had been wongly closed due to
m scounting. Comm ssioner Lloyd declared that the Yukon
River is a difficult area to manage. He noted that the
cl osing has been characterized as an error or mscount, but
in actuality, given the total run size of the Chinook run

the statistics were within 15 to 20 percent of the estimate
of the total run. He agreed that for a region suffering
econom c problens, but it is a dramatic problem |In prior
years there had been too nuch harvesting hindering the
conservation goals. Comm ssioner Lloyd said that people or
communities were not paid back, but DEC tried to design the
opening and cl osing of the summer Chumfishers and, later in
the year, the Coho fisheries to allow nore harvesting to
occur . Representative Gara contended that in nore
economcally depressed areas, reliant on one industry, it
seens to call for a nore financial response.

3:15:51 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asserted that subsistence issues are the
state's highest priority. Conm ssioner Lloyd agreed that the
department operates under the mandate that subsistence has a
priority. Co-Chair Stoltze asked if managenent decisions
were being made before or after the fish enter the Al aska
river systens. Conm ssioner Lloyd answered that fisheries

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



| ooked at both before and after they enter the river
syst ens.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that in 2008 the nunmber of anglers
purchasing fishing |icenses was 8 percent over of the target
goal, but the days the anglers spent fishing was under
target. He wondered if this would change in 2009 and how
this would affect departnent policy. Conm ssioner Lloyd
responded that the departnent did not know the 2009 nunbers,
but he did not believe that policy affected the 2008
nunbers. He Dbelieved economc conditions affected the
nunbers nore.

Co-Chair Stoltze nmintained that when there are nore
closures and less angler days, that could affect the
nunbers.

3:21: 54 PM

Vice-Chair Thomas believed that the once the Anchorage
Hat chery opens sone of these problens mght be solved. He
noted that Fairbanks does not have a hatchery. Conmm ssioner
LI oyd warned that nore fish is not always the best way to
address all nmanagenent issues.

3:23:43 PM

Representative Salnon asked if there were two sonar near
nout h of the Yukon River and one at the border. Conmm ssioner
LI oyd answered that there is one sonar site near the nouth
at Pilot Station; there are two sonar aimng fromdifferent
banks counted as one. There is also sonar at Eagle near the
Canadi an bor der

Representative Salnon asked who decides when to shut the
salnmon flow into the Yukon River

Comm ssi oner Lloyd responded that it was inpossible to know
how many sal non woul d be returning each year. The depart nment
only issues projections or forecasts. He added that sal non
managenent deals with escapenent; targeting the nunber of
fish that need to escape through the fishery to end up on
t he spawning grounds. He remnded that it is not an exact
sci ence. Representative Salnon asked if another sonar site
after the Tanana River would give a better estimte of how
many salnon were heading toward the Canadian border.

Conmi ssioner Lloyd commented that additional sonar is not
al ways the answer. He noted the departnent operates aeria

surveys in the spawning grounds and would put into place
ot her projects, but often not enough noney for additiona

pr ogr ans.

3:30: 01 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



Representative Austerman indicated that prior to the state
having the oil noney there were other systens in place. He
wondered why the departnent doesn't request nore noney to
run the departnment in the manner it needs to manage the
fishery stocks. Conm ssioner Lloyd replied that different
departnments would ask for different anmounts of noney. He
added that the DFG has enjoyed sonme good growth and focused
on sone problem areas, but there were good opportunities for
additional investnent to do a better job of getting nore
from sust ai ned vyi el d.

Representative Austerman believed the Adm nistration needs
to ask for what they need, and then the |l egislature needs to
fund it. He asked how many systens around the state are
havi ng ongoi ng probl ens.

M. Lloyd responded that he does not have a count. He noted
that Alaska is known as a |leader in sal non managenent, but
problem cycles in productivity tend to nove around the
state. There are sone chronic areas of difficulty such as
the Susitna Valley, Norton Sound and Yukon River. He
menti oned ei ght sal non stocks of concern around the state of
Al aska.

3:36:46 PM

Representative Gara agreed that counting fish on every river
systemis not the sanme, but he contended that it seened |ike
a lot less effort and equi pnent goes into counting on the
Yukon River.

Comm ssi oner Lloyd stated that was not the case. He asserted
that the Yukon River was getting a lot of attention
factoring in the logistical difficulties, but agreed there
was a ot of roomfor gromh. Representative Gara reiterated
that the perception is a lot nore noney is given to counting
on the Kenai River versus the Yukon River.

3:39:13 PM

Conmi ssioner Lloyd shared that he did not have the budgets
for the two rivers before him but he believed that
assunption was w ong. Co-Chair Hawker nentioned the
Commerci al Fisheries Revolving Loan Fund is a successful and
important programw thin the agency. He stressed his concern
of taking noney from this fund to support other government
or department activities.

3:40: 51 PM

Representative Kelly asked about sone thoughts on the guides
use vari ance.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



Conmi ssioner Lloyd maintained that the reason the DFG and
DNR were going though this exercise deals with identified
problenms of crowding and too nmany guides in too small an
area. It may be necessary to |limted the nunber of guides
per area and inprove the quality of service. The tradeoff is
that if you restrict the nunber of guides, the revenue m ght
i ncrease, but al so reduce soneone's opportunity to engage in
t he gui di ng busi ness.

Co- Chair Hawker voiced his concern about the objectivity of
t he board nenbers.

Conmi ssioner Lloyd asked if Co-Chair Hawker believed there
were too many vested guiding interests on the board. Co-
Chair Hawker remarked that one group of professionals feels
that another established group controls the board and is
excluding, injuring and danmaging them He enphasized the
desire for these boards to be as fair and objective as
possi bl e.

3:44: 34 PM

Representative Kelly declared the outconme could be the
di senfranchi sement of a |arge group of people who earn their
living as guides. Oten when rules are changed unilaterally
is causes dislocation in the bush communities and he
believed this has elenents of the sanme problem

Conmi ssioner Lloyd stated that the review has been ongoing
for at least three years. Representative Kelly reiterated
that there was a belief that it was driven by the "good old
boys. "

Representative Salnon inquire about the chain of conmand
for stopping the fish on the Yukon River. Conm ssioner
Ll oyd stated that the state's managenent system for fish
and ganme is wunique, but there is an energency order
authority granted to the departnent by the Alaska statute
whi ch provides for the opening and closing of fishing and
hunti ng seasons based of the assessnment of harvest goals
and bi ol ogical productivity. The departnent has del egated
this power to as local a |evel as possible. The strength of
the system is that people in the field with real tine
access to the information and direct interaction with | ocal
users are making the deci sions.

#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:50 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 01/ 25/ 10 1:32 P. M



